ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE STATE AFFAI RS STANDI NG COW TTEE
January 27, 2004
8:00 a. m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Bruce Weyhrauch, Chair
Representative JimHolm Vice Chair
Represent ati ve John Coghi l
Representative Bob Lynn
Represent ati ve Paul Seaton
Representative Ethan Berkow tz
Representati ve Max Gruenberg

VEVMBERS ABSENT
Al l nmenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 350

"An Act relating to adding personal injury, death, and property
damage from arson in the first degree to the offenses
conpensabl e by the Violent Crinmes Conpensation Board.™

- MOVED CSHB 350( STA) QUT OF COW TTEE

HOUSE BI LL NO. 337

"An Act relating to anatomn cal donor registries, to an
anatom cal gift awareness fund, to an anatom cal gift awareness
program and to notor vehicle |icenses and registrations.”

- MOVED CSHB 337(STA) OQUT OF COW TTEE
HOUSE BI LL NO 241
"An Act relating to optional exenptions from nunicipal property
taxes on residential property.”
- HEARD AND HELD
PREVI QUS ACTI ON
BILL: HB 350

SHORT TITLE: CRI ME VI CTI MS' COVPENSATI ON FOR ARSON
SPONSCRS( S) : REPRESENTATI VE(S) GATTO, GRUENBERG

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -1- January 27, 2004



01/ 12/ 04 (H PREFI LE RELEASED 1/ 2/ 04

01/ 12/ 04 (H READ THE FI RST TI ME - REFERRALS
01/ 12/ 04 (H STA, JUD

01/ 20/ 04 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TCL 102

01/ 20/ 04 (H) <Bi || Hearing Rescheduled to 1/22>
01/ 22/ 04 (H) STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 102

01/ 22/ 04 (H Schedul ed But Not Heard

01/ 27/ 04 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 102

BILL: HB 337
SHORT TITLE: ANATOM CAL G FTS REG STRY
SPONSOR(S): REPRESENTATI VE(S) MCGUI RE

01/ 12/ 04 (H) PREFI LE RELEASED 1/ 2/ 04

01/ 12/ 04 (H) READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 12/ 04 (H) STA, HES, FIN

01/ 20/ 04 (H) STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 102

01/ 20/ 04 (H Heard & Hel d

01/ 20/ 04 (H) M NUTE( STA)

01/ 27/ 04 (H) STA AT 8:00 AM CAPI TOL 102
BILL: HB 241

SHORT TI TLE: MJUNI Cl PAL PROPERTY TAX EXEMPTI ON
SPONSCR( S) : REPRESENTATI VE(S) CHENAULT

04/ 04/ 03 (H READ THE FI RST Tl ME - REFERRALS
04/ 04/ 03 (H) CRA, STA

05/ 06/ 03 (H) CRA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 124

05/ 06/ 03 (H -- Meeting Cancel ed --

05/ 08/ 03 (H) CRA AT 9: 00 AM CAPI TOL 124

05/ 08/ 03 (H Moved Qut of Conmmttee

05/ 08/ 03 (H) M NUTE( CRA)

05/ 12/ 03 (H) CRA RPT 3DP 1NR

05/ 12/ 03 (H) DP: KOTIT, WOLF, MORGAN, NR: Cl SSNA
01/ 13/ 04 (H) STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TCL 102

01/ 13/ 04 (H) <Bi || Hearing Postponed>

01/ 20/ 04 (H) STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TCL 102

01/ 20/ 04 (H) Heard & Hel d

01/ 20/ 04 (H) M NUTE( STA)

01/ 27/ 04 (H STA AT 8: 00 AM CAPI TOL 102

W TNESS REG STER

REPRESENTATI VE CARL GATTO

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified as sponsor of HB 350.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 2- January 27, 2004



GERAD GODFREY, Chair

Violent Crinmes Conpensation Board

Departnent of Adm nistration

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Told the commttee that the board has
chosen to support [HB 350] as a piece of |egislation beneficial
particularly to victins of arson; answered questions from the
committee.

SUSAN BROWNE, Adm ni strat or

Vi ol ent Crines Conpensation Board

Department of Adm nistration

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answered questions for the commttee during
t he hearing on HB 350.

KELLY NI COLELLO, Assistant State Fire Marshall

Division of Fire Prevention

Department of Public Safety

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Ofered statistics regarding arson-rel ated
deaths in Alaska; testified that the departnment is in agreenent
with HB 350 "the way it's witten."

HEATH HI LYARD, St aff

to Representative Lesil MGuire

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON  STATEMENT: Answered questions on behal f of
Representative McQuire, sponsor of HB 337.

JILL STEINHAUS, Director of Devel opnent

Li f eCent er Nort hwest

Bel | evue, Washi ngt on

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answer ed questions on behalf of LifeCenter
Nor t hwest during the hearing on HB 337.

DUANE BANNOCK, Director

Di vi sion of Mtor Vehicles (DW)

Department of Adm nistration

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answered questions during the hearing on HB
337.

RANDY HOFFBECK
Pet r ol eum Property Assessor

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 3- January 27, 2004



Departnent of Revenue
State of Al aska
Anchor age, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:

STEVE PORTER, Deputy Comm ssi oner
Departnent of Revenue

State of Al aska

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT:

SUE HECKS, Energency Medical Services Chief

Sel dovi a Anmbul ance and Fire Depart nent

City of Seldovia

Sel dovi a, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified against the CS version of HB 241.

SHARALYN WRI GHT

Staff to Representative M ke Chenault

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified to clarify why CSHB241 renoved
| anguage fromthe original bill

STEVE VAN SANT, State Assessor

Central Ofice

Di vision of Comunity Advocacy

Department of Comrunity & Econom c Devel opnent

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answered questions during the hearing on HB
241.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

TAPE 04-07, SIDE A
Number 0001

CHAI R BRUCE WEYHRAUCH called the House State Affairs Standing
Commttee neeting to order at 8:00 a.m Representati ves Hol m
Coghill, Lynn, and Weyhrauch were present at the call to order.
Representatives G uenberg, Seaton, and Berkowitz arrived as the
nmeeting was in progress.

HB 350-CRI ME VI CTI M5 COVPENSATI ON FOR ARSON

Nunmber 0060

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -4- January 27, 2004



CHAI R WEYHRAUCH announced that the first order of business was
HOUSE BILL NO 350, "An Act relating to adding personal injury,
deat h, and property danmage fromarson in the first degree to the
of fenses conpensable by the Violent Crinmes Conpensation Board."

Nunber 0117

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noved to adopt the commttee substitute
(CS) for HB 350, [Version 23-LS1324\Q Luckhaupt, 1/21/04, as a
work draft. There being no objection, Version Q was before the
comittee.

Number 0150

REPRESENTATI VE CARL GATTO, Al aska State Legislature, as sponsor
of HB 350, revealed that he spent 25 years in the fire
departnment in Anchorage and as a result has responded to a
countl ess nunber of small fires, fewer large fires, and nmany
medical runs. He said he has seen many of the difficulties that
people suffer as a result of fires. Representative Gatto,
depicting the viciousness of arson, recounted a persona
experience in his own comunity whereby a friend of his was
asl eep at hone and his wife awoke at 3 a.m to noises and found
that the side of the house was on fire. The fire departnent
said that at that hour of the norning, the fire had clearly been
set by soneone.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO told the commttee that when [fire fighters
respond to] a fire at 2 am and find a car in the driveway and
no snoke alarm going off, they are fairly certain that people
are inside; therefore, a search and rescue nust be done. The
situation [where his friends awoke to find the house on fire]
clearly was attenpted murder, he stated.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO said that death is not the only devastating
result of fire, but sonetines nore devastating are injuries
resulting fromfires. That is why there are special facilities
that provide long-term care. He nentioned mlitary personnel
com ng back fromwar with burns. He continued as foll ows:

Because it is so ... devastating to people, and
because it was not included in the list of violent
crinmes conpensation, Representative Guenberg and |
| ooked at it, and it just seened apparent that it was
sinply an error of om ssion. And it is our wish to
sinply add this to the list of violent crines that can
recei ve conpensation through the board.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 5- January 27, 2004



Number 0377

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH asked why the proposed legislation limts the
addition to [the crime of] arson in the first degree.

Number 0400

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG expl ained that the reason that he and
Representative Gatto chose arson in the first degree is: "It
requires that sonebody be placed in imrediate physical danger;
the other crines don't." He noted that the Violent Crines

Conmpensati on Board conpensates for physical injury or death. He
said he supposes it would be possible to have a "crimnally
negligent burning with that result,” and he said he doesn't
think that [the sponsors] would have any objection to amending
the bill to include "those."

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said there have been sone recent
crimes, particularly in Anchorage, that brought this omssion to
his attention. There didn't seem to be any reason not to have
arson in the first degree on the Iist. He remarked that to
prove the crine of nurder, the intent to kill must be shown;
however, with arson in the first degree, all that needs to be
shown is that there is an intentional or reckless burning, and
t hat sonebody was thereby endangered. He added, "You don't even
have to show that the person knew that the person was inside
just that they negligently set the fire." He said, "If you had
the injury, then you'd have the [arson in the first degree].”

Nunmber 0600

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH stated for the record, "This has to do wth
inpacts to individuals, not to property.” If it was opened up
to inpact to property in regard to conpensation received from
[the Victinse of Crinme Conpensation Board], then "you' ve got the
entire Title 11 to add in to the statute.” He added that that
would be a policy decision that he is not sure the committee
wants to [ make].

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noted that the original bill version
did include property danage from arson in the first degree,
because wusually, if there is a fire sufficient to cause a
significant injury, there wll also be significant property
damage. He noted that there had been imrediate outcry from a
nunber of different people that "this would soon exhaust the
resources of that board.”

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 6- January 27, 2004



CHAI R WEYHRAUCH asked, "Why not have an inmediate effective
dat e?"

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG explained that, as a policy mtter,
whenever he introduces legislation he doesn't [include] an
i mredi ate effective date, unless there is a reason to do so. He
said, "The statutes contenplate a 90-day period to give people
time to gear up." He stated that he would not have any
objection [to an imedi ate effective date]. He suggested asking
a representative of the previously nentioned board what the
i npact on it woul d be.

Number 0846

GERAD GODFREY, Chair, Violent Crimes Conpensation Board,
Department of Administration, told the commttee that the board
has chosen to support [HB 350] as a piece of |legislation
beneficial particularly to victins of arson. He stated his
personal belief that the bill stands on its own nerit and sells
itsel f. He said, "The absence of arson from the inception of
the bill that created the paraneters for this board was |ikely
an oversight. Perhaps arson, at the tinme, didn't fit the
traditional paradigm of the era for a violent «crine."
Ironically, he noted, fire, in and of itself, nay be the nost
violent natural force on earth. Therefore, when an i ndividual
sets a fire with or without intent, that person unleashes the
nost violent, wunpredictable, and often wuncontrollable force.
Any personally adverse results from that fire should be
conpensable by the Violent Crime Conpensation Board, he opined.
He gave credit to both Representatives Gatto and G uenberg for
addressing this 1long overdue and overlooked provision for
victinms of arson.

MR. GODFREY nentioned current fiscal limtations and said he
would not normally look to increase the nunber of eligible
cl ai mant s. He indicated that that was probably his first

reservation upon looking at the initial draft of the bill.
However, regarding [Version @, he stated his belief that it is
necessary to add Arson, which perhaps "epitom zes a violent

crine." He stated that the victinms of arson have the potentia
to suffer as nuch, or nore than victinms of gunshot wounds and
assaults with any other type of weapon. He encouraged the

commttee nenbers to support HB 350.

Nunber 1022

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -7- January 27, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE LYNN asked what the average award is "from this
conpensation front."

MR. GODFREY noted that the maxi mum allowable [award] is $40, 000
and there is no mninum He surm sed that the average falls
around $2, 000. That typically would include counseling for
victins. He offered nore exanples of how the noney is awarded.

Nunmber 1165

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN stated, "I assunme that this doesn't preclude
any civil liability for the ... arsonist; in other words,

you still sue for civil damages. |Is that correct?" |In response
to a request by M. CGodfrey to clarify his question, he asked,
"They can still sue for <civil damages in addition to the

conpensation fromthe fund?"

MR. GODFREY answered that they can. He noted that the board has
a caveat in place that if that person should recuperate his/her
| osses through avenues such as insurance, he/she does have an
obligation to reinburse the board. He noted that that
rei mbursenent does not go into the board's coffers, but rather
into the general fund. He said that it is the board s purpose
to help people as soon as possible, whereas he noted that civi
|l aw doesn't work in an expeditious fashion. He said that,
occasionally, a person's attorney wll contact the board and
request that the board waive the person's repaynent obligation
because, even after the settlenent, that person is still in dire
straits.

REPRESENTATI VE LYNN asked, "How rmuch did we spend |ast year for
t hi s?"

MR. GODFREY deferred that question to the board' s adm nistrator.
Number 1330

SUSAN BROWNE, Administrator, Violent Crines Conpensation Board,
Department of Administration, told the commttee that the board
awar ded approxinmately $1.3 million to fire victins in Al aska or
their service providers.

Nunber 1400

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH nentioned reading about the board's binary

report in odd nunber years. He asked if that was the figure
given to the legislature | ast year.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 8- January 27, 2004



M5. BROME said that she is tal king about fiscal year (FY) 2003.
She noted that the report has not been conpleted yet, but is

al nost available on line and will be delivered sonetine within
t he next nonth. In response to a question by Chair Wyhrauch
she said that the $1.3 million was for one year. |n response to

a followup questions by Chair Wyhrauch, she said that the
limt for awards is $40,000 per victim per incident, except in
the case of homcide, where there are nultiple dependents and
the Iimt is then $80, 000. She added, "And that was raised,
effective two years ago." The $40,000 used to be $30,000, and
t he $80, 000 used to be $40, 000. It is funded through PFD funds
that are not given to those convicted of felonies and nmultiple
m sdenmeanors. Al so, she said, an application is nade every year
for an office of victins of crinme fund, which is a Departnent of
Justice fund where the federal convicts are fined and states can
apply for a grant. Before the permanent fund, the nobney cane
fromthe general fund.

CHAI R WVEYHRAUCH asked M. Godfrey if he has an opinion about an
i mredi ate effective date.

MR. GODFREY replied that he doesn't have a problem with that at

all. He noted that there are not a large nunber of arson cases
t hroughout the state, and he said he doesn't "expect this to
really flood us with clains in [arson in the first degree]." He
stated that his expectation is that the few [clains] the board
will get will be fromthose in dire need.

Number 1553

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH asked if adding another crime to the list of
what can be conpensated would create a fiscal inpact to the
state.

MR. GODFREY answered that the board's funding wll not be
increnmentally increased in any way by the addition of [arson in
the first degree] to [statute]. He explained that the increase
in applications will have the effect of ultimately reducing the

anount of funds available for further applications. At the end
of the fiscal year, he said, the board may be hol ding applicants
off or deferring them until it gets new funding. He said,
"That's unfortunate, but that's the way it is."

Nunber 1637

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 9- January 27, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE COGHI LL asked the follow ng three questions: I's
there a priority list; have other states done this and what is
the type of payout that has gone out to the victim because of
arson-related crinme; and has there been anything in Al aska that
has gone wanti ng because of this not being in statute?

MR. GODFREY, addressing the question regarding a hierarchy of
claims, said the board has a great deal of latitude and
di scretion and does everything on a case-by-case basis. He also
noted that the board |limts itself through approxinmately seven
policies. Regarding the question about other states, he said he
doesn't know. He noted that he has been seated on the board for

only about a year now. However, he said the forner board
adm nistrator stated that the disparity in the way states "do
this" is "nothing short of a chasm" He noted that there is a

person who serves as a director of a national violent crines
conpensation board who is a wealth of information regarding
ot her states.

Nunmber 1890

MR. GODFREY said he would defer Representative Coghill's third
guestion to the adm nistrator. He explained that if there have
been any applications [made by victinms of arson], the office in
Juneau would know, but the applications would never have been
sent on to the board to consider in one of its neetings. He
added that if such an application had made it to the board, it
woul d have been deni ed as nonconpensabl e. He surmised that [if
the board covered conpensation for victins of arson], the
average claim awarded would be for personal injury and
psychol ogi cal counseli ng. The financial burden for a burn
victim can be astronomcal, he stated, because the victim may
need skin grafts for years to cone. That person may cone back
years later for reconsideration by the board after having their
first claimgranted. The board would then have to set a policy
at that tine to decide how long it would continue to cover that
person. He indicated that sone clains may be awarded $15,000 to
$30,000 "a hit." He sumarized that it's a choice of how many
get hel ped how nmuch.

Number 2075

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG  regarding Representative Coghill's
previously stated question whether there had been any interest
in getting awards from the board in the past [for arson],
returned to the subject of the recent events in the Muntain
View area [in Anchorage]. He noted that he had asked the

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -10- January 27, 2004



constituents involved if they had applied to the Violent Crines
Conpensati on Board; however, he discovered that they were not
eligible for conpensation [because arson is not one of the
crimes currently covered].

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG recalled that one of the previous
exanples offered by M. CGodfrey regarding uses of the fund was
to sonetines relocate victinms of stalking. He asked Ms. Browne
if Alaska has a witness relocation program simlar to that run
by the federal governnent.

M5. BROWNE answer ed no.

MR. GODFREY interjected that he doesn't believe there is any

program like that at all. He remarked, "It's a small world in
Al aska and people know people, so | think ... if you're
relocating, it would have to be outside the state.” He offered

his understanding that there are no states that run such a
program the federal marshals are the only ones who [relocate
W t nesses] . M. Godfrey indicated that in order for the board
to even consider awarding nobney to a person who wants to
relocate [to get away from a stal ker, for exanple], that person
woul d have to show that he/she has an entire plan in order.

Number 2235

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG handed out a spreadsheet [show ng
deaths as a result of arson, included in the commttee packet].
He also read statistics regarding incidents of arson and the
resulting injuries, as follows: Four injuries in two incidents
in 2001; seven injuries in three incidents in 2002; and, in an
i nconpl ete 2003 report, seven injuries in one incident.

Nunber 2280

KELLY NI COLELLO, Assistant State Fire Marshall, Division of Fire
Prevention, Departnent of Public Safety, told the conmttee that
he had supplied those statistics, as well as [the spread sheet].
He stated that [the State Fire Marshals] are the primry
investigators for the crime of arson in determning the origin
and cause. The crimnal aspect is usually followed up by either
the Alaska State Troopers, or the police force in the
jurisdiction involved.

MR. NI COLELLO said the inpact on famly mnmenbers, both those

infjured and those dealing wth the loss of |loved ones, is
dranmati c. He stated, "It's such a visible etching ... on their

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -11- January 27, 2004



mnd, that to take the crinme of arson in the first degree and
not give it the same weight as sonebody who is injured or dies
by gunshot or stabbing is really a msnoner.” He said, "W are
in agreenment with this bill the way it's witten, based on
injury and death versus the property rights issue, and we
believe it's a good bill."

Number 2380

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO, as a fornmer fire fighter, said it's
certainly obvious that firenen are often injured and burned as a
result of arson fires; however, "they're conpensated in other
ways. " He added, "So, I'm going to take it that this is
general ly a needs-based situati on when you award?"

Number 2395

MR. GODFREY replied, "Truth be told, again, that is sonething
that this current seated board is operating by, or attenpting

to." Statutorily, he added, "that 1is not a criteria."
Typically, he said, the board does give consideration regardless
of sonebody's financial status. He noted that the board would

not double an award in the instance where a person had already
been gi ven noney by his/her insurance conpany.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO noted that the existing list of things that
apply [towards consideration for conpensation] includes nurder
and sexual assault "in any degree.”" He asked M. Godfrey how he
feel s about arson being considered only in the first degree.

MR. GODFREY responded that he is "at peace with" arson in the
first degree, because it is cut and dry regarding the crine
havi ng taken place. He offered the exanple of the fire that was
out in the Big Lake area. |If soneone had started that fire as a
canpfire that got out of control and it envel oped the whol e area
to include "a house where people didn't get out in time," he
said he doesn't believe that that would be arson in the first
degr ee. He stated that although he personally thinks it's an
unfortunate incident that was a violent occurrence, he questions
whet her the intent to violence was there. He said he would be
reluctant to "increase the degrees there on that."

MR. GODFREY noted that the board still has the option and the
di scretion to consider conpensation for [victinms of arson in the
second degree]. He stated his reluctance has always been
getting people's hopes up and nmeking them "junp through a bunch
of hoops, only to shoot 'em down," when it's a foregone

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -12- January 27, 2004



conclusion that there's nothing the board is going to be able to
do for them He reveal ed that the board has sone severe fisca
restraints it has continually faced over the |ast year. He
added, "It's very difficult to see a scenario off the top of ny
head, whereby sonething beyond [arson in the first degree] would
be conpensated.™

Number 2639

M5. BROWNE noted that a few states conpensate both arson and hit
and run; therefore, there would be sonme precedence for
conpensati ng arson. She told the conmttee that there are
currently a couple of <clains involving arson that would be
af fected when the comm ttee deci des upon an effective date. She
noted that M. Godfrey would not have known that, because the
board has not received those clains yet. She said [the
Department of Admi nistration] receives two to three arson clains
each year that end up "getting closed" because arson is not
currently a crinme that is conpensat ed.

Nunmber 2685

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he hadn't realized that hit and
run is not conpensated. He suggested that the House Judiciary
Standing Conmittee, the next conmmttee of referral, consider
adding that to the bill. He said there are a lot of hit and

runs around, which may "bust the bank," and he remarked that he
is very protective of the board and doesn't want to see it get
too many clains that it cannot respond to.

REPRESENTATI VE GATTO said, "I'mwth you on that."

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG expl ai ned that he doesn't want to add
that in the House State Affairs Standing Commttee, because that
woul d be "quite a step.”

MR. GODFREY said he appreciates that.

CHAI R VEYHRAUCH asked if there is any opposition to an imedi ate
effective date.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG reiterated that this is an issue that
he has not contenplated, but it seens like it mght "help sone
people” [to add an inmedi ate effective date].

M5. BROMNE agreed that it woul d.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -13- January 27, 2004



Nunber 2776

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH asked if there was any objection to adding an
i mredi ate effective date to HB 350. There being none, it was so
or der ed.

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH cl osed public testinony.
NUVBER 2793

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM noved to report CSHB 350, Version 23-
LS1324\ Q Luckhaupt, 1/21/04, as anended, out of commttee with
i ndi vi dual recomendations and the acconpanying fiscal note.
There being no objection, CSHB 350(STA) was noved out of the
House State Affairs Standing Conmmttee.

HB 337- ANATOM CAL d FTS REGQ STRY

Nunmber 2833

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH announced that the next order of business was
HOUSE BILL NO 337, "An Act relating to anatom cal donor
registries, to an anatomcal gift awareness fund, to an
anatom cal gift awareness program and to notor vehicle |icenses
and registrations.™

Nunmber 2846

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM noved to adopt the commttee substitute (CS)
for HB 337, Version 23-LS1257\S, as a work draft. There being
no objection, Version S was before the commttee.

TAPE 04-07, SIDE B
Nunmber 2955

[ The commttee aide, in response to a question from
Representative Guenberg, said that Version S is the form
commttee substitute.]

Number 2909

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ turned to page 2, line 19, of Version
S, which read as foll ows:

(b) A registry nmust include only residents of
this state.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -14- January 27, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE  BERKOW TZ  asked i f it S correct t hat
nonresi dents can get driver's licenses [currently].

HEATH HI LYARD, Staff to Representative Lesil MQiire, Al aska
State Legi sl ature, answeri ng guesti ons on behal f of
Representative MQuire, sponsor, offered his understanding that
Representative Berkowitz is correct.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ asked, "So, if a nonresident were to
fill out the donor registration card, what happens then?"

MR HLYARD replied that when the Departnent of Revenue's
Permanent Fund Division |looks at qualifications for residency,
obtaining a driver's license is "one neasure"; therefore, he
stated his understanding that [applying for] a driver's |icense
is a declaration of residency.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ said his question is not in regard to
resi dents, but rather to nonresidents. He stated his
understanding that not only can nonresidents get licenses in
[ Al aska], but also in sonme circunstances they are required to do
so, if they are working here for sone period of time, for
exanpl e. He asked what the protocol [for issuing an] organ
[donor] card would be when a nonresident gets a driver's
| i cense.

Nunmber 2847

JILL STEINHAUS, Director of Developnent, LifeCenter Northwest,
responded that people who go through the driver's |license
application can make their decision about donations at that tine
and will be included in the Alaska registry. I f anything were
to happen to them while they were in Alaska, that information
woul d be used for indicating their decision to donate. |If those
people were to nove outside of the state and have a driver's
license issued in a different state, then that newer |icense
woul d "trunp” the previous one, as far as an indication of organ
donati on.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOWN TZ clarified that his concern is that the
registry must include only residents of the state. He asked how
a nonresident who wants to register [as an organ donor] would be
acconmodat ed.

MS. STEI NHAUS answered that typically, procurenent organizations
have contacted a nonresident's state of residency and "ensured

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -15- January 27, 2004



that they're able to register through their state's registration
system " and then have nade note of that in their own system

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOWN TZ noted that there are, wunfortunately,
many nonresidents who perish while on the road, and he wants to
make certain that their organs are available for donation;
otherwi se they're |lost to everybody.

V5. STEI NHAUS responded yes. She noted that what would happen
when sonmeone dies while "on the road" is [the procurenent
organi zations] would revert to following the statute of the
state that person is from based on the card that he/she is
carryi ng.

Nunber 2747

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ responded, "Yes and no." He said he
under st ands what would happen in the instance where soneone is
[in Alaska] carrying a Mnnesota driver's |icense; however, when
a Mnnesota resident has acquired an Alaska driver's license,
and the statute specifically precludes them from being
registered [as an organ donor in Alaska], they may fall through
t he cracks.

CHAI R VWEYHRAUCH asked if Representative Berkowitz is referring
to tenporary driver's licenses that the state issues.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ responded as fol | ows:

| know if people conme up here and work for nore than

30 ... or 45 days - ... | don't recall the exact tine
period - they're required to get an Al askan operator's
| i cense. ... Truckers who conme wup here, [for
exanpl e] . | just want to nake sure that soneone who
wants to make a contribution, whether they're an
Al aska resident or not, ... [doesn't] just fal

through the cracks because our paperwork precludes
t hem from bei ng i nvol ved.

Nunmber 2690

MS. STEINHAUS responded that that would not preclude them from
donati ng. She said, essentially, HB 337 is setting up a
dat abase system for information specifically [regarding] the
residents of Al aska. She stated her understanding that

Representative Berkowitz is concerned about those people who are
nonresi dents of Al aska who have docunents identifying them as

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -16- January 27, 2004



being in Alaska for "at least a period of tine." She said,
"What we would do is work with them on an individual basis,
identify their decision about donation, and ensure that no
i ndi vi dual who may perish here in the state of Al aska would be
exenpt from donating.” She said that, in a sense, that would be
a separate process than "what we're establishing here.” She
mentioned federal guidelines enacted in 1998, which require that
every individual who passes away be considered a potential donor
at the time of death.

Number 2661

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON offered his interpretation that the only
people who can be in the registry are Al askan residents.
Therefore, a student who maintains his/her voting registry in
anot her state, but gets an Alaska driver's license, could get
the [donor sticker] on that [license], but would not be included
in the registry. He asked if that is the intent of the bill

Nunmber 2626
MB. STEI NHAUS responded that that is not the intent of the bill
Number 2613

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG said he t hi nks Represent ati ves
Ber kowitz and Seaton share his concern, which is the use of word
"must" on page 2, line 19. That can be read two ways: as a
term of direction - you nust do it, or as a term of exclusion -
you can only do it. He asked what the sponsor's intent is.

MR. HI LYARD indicated the original bill version and said, "That
was a particularly sticky phrase.™ He pointed to [page 2,
beginning on line 19] of the original bill version, which read:

(b) A registry nmust include all residents of this
state, regardless of their residence wthin the
service area designated by the federal governnent.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noted that the |anguage deleted had
been the word "all" and the phrase follow ng the conma; however,
the term "nust” was there and was equally anbi guous. He asked
M. Hlyard what he wants to do in order to be clearer in the
drafting.

MR. HI LYARD responded by asking at what point residency 1is
decl ared or soneone is considered to have becone a resident. He

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -17- January 27, 2004



suggested that soneone from the Departnment of Motor Vehicles
(DW) [nmay better answer that question].

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG asked M. Hilyard to put aside the DW
and asked himif he wants to "limt it to only residents of the
state.”

MR. HI LYARD answered, "Cenerally, no."
Nunmber 2523

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ asked what would happen if that 1line
were just del eted.

MR. H LYARD answered, "Nothing, to ny understanding." He
mentioned that [the sponsor] had held a discussion wth
[ Legi sl ative Legal and Research Services] debating the use of
the word "only" versus "all".

Nunmber 2490
DUANE BANNOCK, Director, Dyvision of Mtor Vehicles (DW),

Department of Adm nistration, stated that when a person cones to
the DW who is not a resident and he/she applies for a driver's

|icense, the DW wll collect [donor registry] data, even if
that person is a resident of Washington state, for exanple. He
said that if Life Al aska gets that information, it wll

dissemnate it to, presumably, the Wshington state registry.
He stated that the DW tends to ask 100 percent of its custoners
to becone an organ donor.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ asked M. Bannock if he would have any
heartburn if the conmttee were to renove [line 19, on page 2 of
Version §].

MR. BANNOCK answered no. He noted, "Section 13.50 isn't
necessarily the DW section.”

MS. STEINHAUS, in response to the same question posed this tine
by Chair Wyhrauch, replied that her only concern is that "what
we're addressing here is a registry that is for the purposes of
use in Alaska." She said that, providing [the comittee
menbers] are okay with striking that |anguage, it would be in
the best interest of the bill.

Nunber 2375

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 18- January 27, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE HOLM asked how the change being discussed m ght
affect the size of the registry, and if [that decision] would
run the risk of making [the registry] so conplex that it cannot
be accessed easily.

MS. STEI NHAUS explained that essentially it would open up the
registry to be utilized by individuals from other states. The
downfall to that, she said, is that other states' statutes may
be different from the statutes in Al aska, regarding anatom cal

gifts. She said, "In Alaska we're able to use an anatom cal
gift as consent for donation, so this systemallows us to access
that individual's decision.” She noted that that may not be the
case for sonebody in another state, where other state statutes
woul d apply. It would be the responsibility of the procurenent
organi zation to be aware of those statutes and to facilitate
that donation appropriately. She concluded, "It won't limt the

ability to recover organs and tissues from individuals and to
all ocate themto the people nost in need."

Nunber 2313

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON turned to the language in the original
bill version regarding this issue [previously provided] and said
it appears there my be sone |egal paraneters of residency
within "this federal service area." He suggested that the word
"must" could be replaced by the word "nmay". He said that
Legislative Legal and Research Services may be defining the
federal service area. He said that, at this point, he is
unconfortabl e "expandi ng or contracting too nuch."

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH summarized that if the commttee chooses to
del ete the | anguage [on page 2, line 19 of Version §], it would
be indicating its intent to broaden the effect of the registry.
In regard to Representative Seaton's concern regarding the | ega
issue related to renmoving the language as it nmay relate "to sone
federal area,” he noted that sone of the nenbers on this
commttee sit on the bill's next conmttee of referral. He
suggested that they prepare a |legal analysis for the benefit of
that next commttee of referral.

Nunber 2181

MR. HLYARD clarified that the federal service [area] to which
the language in the original bill version referred, is a service
area recognized by the U S. Departnent of Health and Hunman
Services for organ procurenent organizations. He offered his
understanding - regarding the drafting of Legislative Legal and

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -19- January 27, 2004



Research Services and whether or not the |anguage in question

"can remain in or be renoved" - that the Alaska DW [is]
responsible for <collecting and distributing the information
collected from "it's residents.” He stated that he thinks the

commttee is getting stuck on the definition of resident and
what is residency.

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH offered that the word [being questioned] 1is
"must".

Number 2147

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ noved to delete line 19 on page 2 of
Version S. There being no objection, it was so ordered.

Nunber 2100
CHAI R WEYHRAUCH cl osed public testinony.
Nunber 2087

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON stated that he would like the sponsor to
get a legal analysis of the renoval that was just made by the

commttee, before the bill is taken up by the next commttee of
referral

Nunber 2069

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noved to report CSHB 337, as anended, out
of comittee W th i ndi vi dual reconmendat i ons and t he
acconpanying fiscal notes. There being no objection, CSHB

337(STA) was noved out of the House State Affairs Standing
Commi ttee.

Nunber 2043
The commttee took an at-ease from9:06 a.m to 9:07 a.m

HB 241- MUNI Cl PAL PROPERTY TAX EXEMPTI ON

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH announced that the next order of business was
HOUSE BILL NO 241, "An Act relating to optional exenptions from
muni ci pal property taxes on residential property.”

Nunmber 1983

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 20- January 27, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noved to adopt the proposed commttee
substitute (CS) for HB 241, Version 23-LS0851\D, Cook, 1\22\04,
as a work draft. There being no objection, Version D was before
the commttee.

Nunber 1947

RANDALL HOFFBECK, Petroleum Property Assessor, Tax Division,
Department of Revenue, testified regarding the ramfications
this bill wll have on the "43-56" properties if residential
properties are exenpted. If the municipalities choose to
increase the mll to conpensate for the exenptions, it could
effect the amount of revenue the state would collect on 43-56
oil and gas properties. M. Hoffbeck said the cal culation that
the Departnment of Revenue nade was based on a projection that if
all nmunicipalities raise the mll rate to offset the exenption

it could have the effect of up to $1.6 mllion on the revenue
collected on oil and gas properties.

Nunmber 1888

STEVE PORTER, Deputy Conmm ssioner, Ofice of the Comm ssioner,
Departnent of Revenue, addressed the fiscal note on behalf of
t he Departnent of Revenue.

CHAIR WEYHRAUCH clarified that the fiscal note was dated
1/ 27/ 2004 and was prepared by Dan Di cki nson.

MR. PORTER referred the conmttee to the worksheet found on page
3 of the fiscal note. The Departnent of Revenue examned this
| egislation to determne its effects. The maxi num effect, based
on the current information, was about $1.6 mllion to the State
of Alaska. M. Porter said that if the exenption for $50,000 is
i ncluded, "we're assuming that the boroughs have three choices":
to reduce their budgets, to increase their sales tax, or to

increase the mll rate. He said, "So there [are] a nunber of
possibilities that the boroughs have before them as tools to
manage their budgets. This is just one tool with a maxinmm
i mpact being $1.6 mllion." M. Porter enphasized that the key
here is to understand that it's $1.6 mllion to the state, but
for them to capture that $1.6 mllion, the borough itself is
paying $12.1 million ... to its own businesses. He said, "It's

really seen as a tool for managenent.”
CHAI R WEYHRAUCH nentioned a concern that by adopting [HB 241]

and giving the option to local nunicipalities to adjust their
property taxes for residential property in this way, |ocal

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -21- January 27, 2004



residents nmay be benefiting, but the burden to replace the
revenues lost will shift to the state legislature. He continued
as follows:

And they'Il say, "Well, we have these exenptions, now

you pay us what we're giving up from these
exenptions. " ... It shifts the burden to ..., well |
guess the oil conpanies who are financing state

gover nnent .
MR. PORTER responded that the burden 1is shifted to the
commercial property owners, not the 43-56 properties, but to all
the properties. He continued:

In fact, the residential properties in excess of

$150,000 - in this environnent, ... anything above
$50, 000 exenmption - that property too (indisc.)
increase the mll rate. Each individual property pays

their proportion of part of the ml|l rate. That's why
t he nunbers show up as $12.1 nmillion and 1.6. So, )
there is a slight shift, but the magjority shift really
is to the local residents and their businesses.

Number 1665

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM asked if "we're" really just shifting the
burden from one side to the other side, not changing the
nmet hodol ogy on a statew de basis.

MR. PORTER responded that if this bill passes there will be a
certain amount of shift in the 43-56 properties - the oil and
gas properties. He indicated that there is "about a $1.6
mllion shift." He expl ained, "The reason for that is the oil
and gas property values versus the residential and commerci al
property values in any particular borough.” He deferred to
Randy Hof fbeck for further explanation.

Nunber 1457
REPRESENTATI VE HOLM asked why this bill is needed.

MR. PORTER explained that the inpact of this bill would be to
shift from residential property to nonresidential property. He
explained that residential property 1is the exenption, so
everything else picks up that exenption, assumng that the sane
revenue is maintained. He noted that a portion of that
nonresi dential property is 43-56 property and "the state would

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -22- January 27, 2004



pick up their proportionate share on that shift; that's where
the mllion dollars cones from"

MR. HOFFBECK explained that the state, by statute, collects a
20-m |l levy on all oil and gas property. He continued as
fol |l ows:

The local municipalities are allowed to collect that
portion of the 20 mlls that they tax everybody el se.
The conpanies take it as a credit against the 20 mlls

that they pay the state. So, for instance, if a
jurisdiction ... had a mll rate of 15 mlls, they
would collect 15 mlls of the 20 mlls and the state
would get 5 mlls. If ... they increase their levy to

16 mlls, the local jurisdiction would collect 16
mlls of the tax and the state would only collect 4.
And so, if the local jurisdictions raise their mll
rate to offset this exenption, effectively, they wl|l
take a greater proportion of that 20-mll tax |evy
that the state has on oil and gas property.

Number 1344

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM asked M. Porter if there is no |limt as to
how much a borough can collect within the 20 mlls on 43-56

property.

MR. PORTER replied that if the borough increased its mll rate
to 20 mlls, the oil conpanies could basically take that as a
credit against the state's 20-m || tax.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON said he understands that several boroughs
and cities already do that and this practice isn't sonething
that is created by this bill. He asked for clarification
regarding the city of Valdez and the entry on the chart [page 3
of the fiscal note].

MR. PORTER clarified that the city of Valdez would have to
exceed the 20 mlls in order to pick up the extra anount. He
noted there is an argunment that they could pick up that
addi tional amount and the oil conpanies would take that full
anount as a credit, up to a total statewide credit of 20 mlls.
He added, "That's an evaluative process.” He said that none of
t he boroughs have exceeded the 20 mlls at the present tinme, so
there's a high likelihood that the Cty of Valdez would not
raise its mll rate above 20 mlls. He referred to a letter in

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -23- January 27, 2004



the file fromthe mayor that states there would be no inpact to
the Gty of Val dez.

Number 1072
VR. PORTER, in response to a followup guestion by

Representative Seaton regarding the fiscal note, explained as
fol |l ows:

This is the absolute, maxinmum possible ... exposure
that the state could receive. There's a high
likelihood that the Cty of Valdez will not pick up
any of that. And in the Fairbanks, Kenai, and the
Nort hsl ope Borough[s] the question is, "How nuch are
their businesses wlling to accept that additional
mll rate?"

MR. PORTER, in response to a concern voiced by Representative
Seaton, offered the follow ng expl anati on:

The boroughs have the right to tax up to 30 mlls.
None of them have gone beyond 20. I f Val dez
went above 20 mlls and picked up that additional
anount, so long as the total anobunt of the entire
state of 43-56 property doesn't exceed 20 mlls to the
oil companies -- in other words, ... if you |ook at
the state, three boroughs cover a |lot of the pipeline,
a lot of the 43-56 properties. There's a piece of the

state that is not organized into boroughs. We get
that full 20 mll. So there's a margin that ... the
state actually picks up in revenue. |f Valdez exceeds
it's proportionate part of the 20 mlls, t hat
proportionate part - as long as it doesn't exceed that
extra anmount - the oil conpanies can claim it as a
credit against the state, even though ... the anount

that Valdez is asking for exceeds the 20 m|l|l.

MR. PORTER indicated that that is hypothetical, because it has
never been tested.

Number 0985

MR. HOFFBECK said M. Porter is correct that the regul ations, as
they are currently structured, state that there is a 20-mll
| evy against all properties within the state. Theoretically, he
said, the conpanies could reach out into an area where they are

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 24- January 27, 2004



not paying 20 mlls and take that additional credit against
those properties. He offered the foll ow ng exanpl e:

For instance, they could reach out into the pipeline
corridor that's in the unorganized borough and
actually take that excess credit that they're paying
in Valdez against that property in the unorganized
bor ough.

MR. HOFFBECK noted that there is an attorney general's opinion
that says that that is an appropriate interpretation.

Number 0935

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ asked if there would be anything to
preclude the legislature acting as the assenbly for the non-
organi zed boroughs and inposing a 20-mll tax on industry
property. After a brief response by M. Porter, Representative
Berkowitz said, "You're telling me right now that there is un-
tapped tax revenue fromthe pipeline in the unorgani zed borough.
Is that correct?"

MR. PORTER responded no. He explained that that tax revenue

already cones to the state; there is a statewide 20-m |l tax on
the oil and gas industry. In response to a followup question
by Representative Berkowitz, he said, "I would define it as --

that it is a net zero to the industry, and the contest is really
a proportionate part. And that's where the $12 mllion and the
$1 million go." He stated there are three players: the state,
| ocal governnent, and | ocal businesses.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ inquired as to the current anount of
muni ci pal assistance and revenue sharing that the state
provides, that is projected in the upcom ng budget.

MR. PORTER said he did not have this information.

REPRESENTATI VE BERKOW TZ stated his understanding that the
anount was going to be zero. He said he thinks that if the
| egislature is going to push the responsibility down to |ocal
government to provide services, because the state is no |onger
doing it, it should give [the local governnent] the naxinmm
anount of flexibility. He stated that the |ocal governnents are
now able to determne if their residents get a tax break if it
is running a surplus, for exanple. He indicated that this bil

is a tool for providing increased flexibility to |ocal
government and has no inpact on the industry. He said he sees

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -25- January 27, 2004



it as a way for local governnment to secure what is due them
because the state has ceased its obligation wth nunicipal
assi stance and revenue shari ng.

Nunber 0710

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noted the difference between nunicipal and
borough taxing jurisdictions. He explained that some
muni ci palities and bor oughs have instituted sales t ax;

therefore, they are taxing their 43-56 properties at a |ower
rate than other boroughs that have opted to have a high mll
rate and no sales tax. He pointed out that there is a
differential between the nonies that are being received from
bor oughs that have a sales tax versus only a property tax.

Nunber 0567

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG nentioned again the letter from the
Gty of Valdez and the potential $1.7 million loss to the state.
He suggested a "hold harnm ess” anendnent be considered. He
proffered, "If a nunicipality wants to shift this around
internally, it's up to them" He stated that he does not want
to see the current fiscal gap increased by this bill. He asked

M. Porter what he thinks [about the suggestion to add a hold
harm ess provision in the bill].

MR. PORTER replied, "That is the |egislature's prerogative."

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG noted that the CS before the conmmttee

shows that "lines 6-8" and Section 2 of the original bill had
been del et ed. He stated that he would like to know what the
i npact of those deletions wll be before the bill is noved out

of commttee.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG nentioned the possible introduction of

a bill that would allow the Al aska School Boards and the Al aska
Muni ci pal League to prepare a fiscal note, at their expense,
which would "travel along with the bill.” He remarked that the

Al aska Municipal League and a nunber of nunicipalities have
supported the idea. He added, "Frankly, we are seeing in this
day and age that a lot of |egislation does have a fiscal inpact
on municipalities.” He said he didn't know if there would be
any interest in putting forth that idea as an amendnent into [HB
214], or not.

Nunber 0278

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 26- January 27, 2004



MR. PORTER comented that the Departnent of Revenue and other
departnments are "responsible to define the inpact to the state.”
He added, "And that's why we are very thorough in our analysis,
so that you understand the total exposure that you' re dealing
with on ... any particular bill. He noted that the Al aska
Muni ci pal League and many [other] organizations are inpacted
directly by any piece of |egislation. Furt hernore, any one of
them has the opportunity to draft "anything they want to draft
and provide the legislature wth that information." He
clarified that it's inportant to maintain the distinction
between fiscal notes that are the responsibility of the State of
Al aska and comments or comunications explaining inpacts from
any individual or group that is not a representative of the
state.

REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG i ndicated that [he] "certainly wouldn't
want to inpinge on that."

Number 0170

SUE HECKS told the commttee that she is the Energency Mdica
Services (EMS) Chief, Seldovia Anbulance and Fire Departnent,
City of Seldovia, as well as the EMS coordinator for the Kenai
area and the statewide chair for the EMS regional directors
coordi nators' group. She stated that she was particularly
interested in Section 2 that had been renoved from the bill.
She expressed curiosity as to the conmttee's rationale for
dropping lines 6-8 and Section 2.

CHAI R VWEYHRAUCH stated his understanding that those deletions
were made at the request of the sponsor and suggested Ms. Hecks
contact the sponsor for further clarification.

The commttee took an at-ease from9:35 a.m to 9:36 a.m

TAPE 04-8, SIDE A

Nunber 090

M5. HECKS testified that the rationale behind adding fire and
energency nedical services to statute for a $10,000 property tax

exenption began in 1998. She stated that she had worked hard on
Senate Bill 4 in 2002 to get this language in for certified Fire

and EMs personnel. She noted that statewide there is a
recruitment and retention issue regarding fire and EMS personnel
in volunteer departnents. She said, "It was docunented in the
EMS and Crisis docunent in 1997 and 1998." She said the

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -27- January 27, 2004



commttee may be famliar with the Code Blue Project - a
partnership between Federal, State, Denali Conm ssion, Rasnmussen
Foundati on fundi ng, and sonme |ocal dollars, to replace the aging
infrastructure of the equipnent and vehicles for EMS services
t hroughout the state. She noted that that did not address the
recruitment and retention issues. She continued as foll ows:

Back in 1998, the Kenai Peninsula EMS Council
identified a property tax exenption as a high priority
for volunteer departnents within the Kenai Peninsula,
and we began to work with the borough to nmke this
occur. Unfortunately, that |anguage is not allowed in
state statutes for nunicipalities or boroughs to be

able to provide that option. So, SB 4 ... was passed
that did add that |anguage to statute for certified
EMS and firefighters. ... That could be an optiona
exenption at the nmunicipal or borough levels, if they
so chose, ... to recognize those personnel, to assist
with the recruitnment and retention issues for staffing
in the volunteer departnents statew de. It's not a
huge sum of noney ..., but it is a way to say thank

you for these folks' commtnent to their community and
their departnents.

An EMI | class is a mninum of 120 hours, plus, you
add to that continuing education, recertification
requi renents, and responses within their areas, that's
a huge tinme conmtnent for a volunteer to face. [The]

sane with firefighters - they have a 160-hour course
to becone a Firefighter I, and then you add on
training and responses on top of that. So, for these
particular individuals there is a huge tinme conm tnent
from their lives and their famlies in order to
provide these services within their comunities, and
we were |looking for a way that we could reward ... and

recogni ze them for their conmtment to service in
their conmmunities.

Fai rbanks Northstar Borough [the] Gty of Ketchikan,
and the Kenai Peninsula Borough have taken advantage
of this, and within the Kenai Peninsula Borough, three
of the six nunicipalities, plus the borough, have
taken advantage of this as well. The Cty of Kena
has no volunteers, so this does not inpact them
That's a little bit of the background as to how this
did cone about and why that was included in statute.

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 28- January 27, 2004



REPRESENTATI VE GRUENBERG, who represents Muwuntain View in
Anchorage, said there are real problens in his district because
it is a high crine area and there are very few police who choose
to live there. He said he has made efforts to attract police to
|ive there because this would reduce crine. He thinks that [a
property tax exenption] is a great idea; he would like to see
municipalities be able to permt an exenption when police nove
into designated high-crinme areas.

Number 0499

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON noted that the CS that elimnated the
exclusion does not apply to taxes for service areas. He asked
Ms. Hecks, "If this exclusion would go in, and also ... bunp the

property tax exenption to $50,000 on those service areas, do you
see a major inpact on the service area fundi ng?”

M5. HICKS replied that if the $50,000 exenption did go through
dependi ng upon where people may be receiving this exenption, she
sees a potential inpact to service area budgets. She stated her
belief that that's why "that |anguage went into this statute.”
If the funding for the special service areas is reduced then
they won't be able to provide those services wthin those
speci fied boundari es. She added that she has not been educated
on the issue to be able to fully address that question.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON responded that he would like to hold HB
241 until the commttee can get further analysis of the inpacts
and gather comments from boroughs and service districts.

SHARALYN WRI GHT, Staff to Representative M ke Chenault, Al aska
State Legislature, testified that the [|anguage that created
guestions - including the service area issue, which is a borough
issue and can be discussed and decided by the boroughs and
municipalities - was renoved. The last section was renoved
because of a concern that property tax credits would be given to
groups that should not qualify. She gave an exanple of a
possi bl e question that could arise regarding a person who does
vol unteer work once a year: "Wuld you be qualified or are you
bei ng discrimnated agai nst because you are not a volunteer fire
fighter or an EMI?" She said this concern caused renoval of
that section of the bill. She opined that decisions affecting
fire service areas should be nmade by nunicipalities, not [by the
| egislature] in this bill

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked Ms. Wight if her reading of the
current bill is "The borough could adopt a $50,000 tax exenption

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -29- January 27, 2004



and then exclude that exenption from particular service areas so
that if they didn't want this exenption to apply to a library
service area, the borough has the authority to say we're getting
a tax exenption but we're not going to apply that tax exenption
to service areas. |Is that your understandi ng?"

Nunmber 0930

M5. WRIGHT replied that boroughs could exenpt in part, for
exanple, only the exenption that would affect that fire service
area. She feels that it is better that boroughs nake decisions
about exenptions and how to apply them wthin their
municipalities; it is better left on the | ocal |evel.

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON replied that he wanted to make sure that
the commttee is clear about their intention in CSHB 241, "That
the borough still has the ability to exenpt this property tax
from service areas, otherwise we are inpacting not only the
bor oughs tax base but every service area within the borough.”

REPRESENTATI VE HOLM stated that it is his understanding that the
CS for HB 241 does not inpact service areas. He stated that
service areas, in addition, could choose to tax thenselves for
particul ar services that they want to provide for thensel ves.

STEVE VAN SANT, State Assessor, Central Ofice, Division of
Community  Advocacy, Depar t ment of Community & Economc
Devel opnent, offered the foll ow ng explanati on:

The statute actually says, "You rmay exenpt or
partially exenpt," and knowi ng what the intent of the
committee is on this bill, certainly wouldn't give us
any heartbreak on it and it would certainly exclude it
from any major error decisions on that. So, | don't
see any problem with it from our perspective on
muni ci pality exenpting the $50,000 from part of the
mll rate there.

CHAI R WEYHRAUCH brought two conceptual issues to Ms. Wight's
attention: Ohe is in regard to the previously stated
indications of M. Porter that "this would potentially affect
busi ness, transferring taxes onto businesses from residences.
He said he doesn't know what the response may be from the
busi ness community. The second issue is in regard to whether
there is going to be a later inpact to the state treasury, wth
muni cipalities comng to the state for fiscal salvation, if
there is a fiscal inpact locally. He said the state treasury

HOUSE STA COW TTEE - 30- January 27, 2004



really can't stand an additional inpact or request for funds
wi t hout some other plan in place.

Number 1350

M5. WRIGHT stated that the key word in the chair's statenment was
"potential" and went on to say:

As far as the municipalities comng back to us after
they made a decision to enact the $50,000 exenption, |

woul d assunme that - since this was a nmnunicipal - based
request and they would have the authority to either
enact or not enact this $50,000 exenption - ... they
woul d take the tine to think this through. The only
thing that this bill does, at this point in time, is
give the nunicipality the authority. It doesn't say

they have to do it [and] it doesn't say how they have
to do it, as long as they remain within Title 29 and
ot her statutes that may apply. The only thing we are
doing now is giving them the authority to do it.
What ever deci sion they make, they have to live wth.

M5. WRI GHT opined that the potentials cannot be anticipated here
in this neeting, "with any variable that's going to cone down
the line for the next five years.”" She stated that it's a |loca
i ssue that needs to be addressed on the |ocal |evel.

MR. VAN SANT noted that there already exist several optional
exenptions that many nunicipalities have taken advantage of. He
of fered exanples. He added, "This is just another tool that
gives [municipalities] an option to shift their burdens around."

Nunmber 1538

CHAI R WVEYHRAUCH announced that HB 241 woul d be hel d.
ADJ OQURNVENT
There being no further business before the commttee, the House

State Affairs Standing Commttee neeting was adjourned at 9:57
a. m

HOUSE STA COW TTEE -31- January 27, 2004



